
AGENDA 
SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
March 4, 2024 

 at 5:00 PM  
 

1. Call to Order at 5:00pm in the SPU Service Center, 255 Sarazin Street 
1a) Roll Call 

 
2. Communications  
 
3. Consent Agenda 
 C=> 3a) Approval of February 5, 2024 Minutes (GD)        
   C=> 3b) Approval of March 4, 2024 Agenda (JK) 
 C=> 3c) March 4, 2024 Warrant List (KW) 
   C=> 3d) Monthly Water Dashboard for January 2024 (LS) 
   C=> 3e) MMPA February 2024 Meeting Updated (GD) 
   C=> 3f) Res #2024-07 Resolution of Appreciation to Denise Berens (GD) 
   C=> 3g) Res #2024-08 Resolution Adopting Fees and Charges for 2024 (JA)  
   C=> 3h) Access to SPU-Owned Equipment – Policy Violation Penalty Process (SW) 
   C=>  3i) Res #2024-09 Resolution Approving of the Estimated Cost of Pipe Oversizing on the Watermain 

Project:  Arbor Bluff 1st Addition (JA) 
   C=> 3j) Res #2024-10 Resolution Setting the Amount of the Trunk Water Charge, Approving of Its Collection 

and Authorizing Water services to Certain Property Described as: Arbor Bluff 1st Addition (JA) 
 

 *** Motion to approve the Consent Agenda  
 
4. Public Comment Period.  Please step up to the table and state your name and address for the Record. 

 
5. Liaison Report (JD) 
 
6. Reports:  Finance 
 6a) SPU Investment Performance Review/Economic & Market Update (KW) 

 
7. Reports:  Water Items 

7a) Water System Operations Report – Verbal (LS) 
 7b) County 800 MHz on Tower 3 (GD) 
 7c) Lions Park Water Service/11th Ave Water Main Recon Project (JA) 
 
8.  Reports:  Electric Items 
 8a) Electric System Operations Report – Verbal (BC) 
 
9. Reports:  General 
 9a) Marketing/Key Accounts Report – Verbal (SW) 
 9b) Res# 2024-11 Resolution Approving Shakopee Public Utilities Commission’s Cogeneration and 

Small Power Production Tariff (JA)  
 9c) General Manager Report – Verbal (GD) 
 9d) SPU Union Negotiations (GD) * 
 
 *A portion of the meeting may be closed under Minnesota Statutes, Section 13D.03, subd. 1 to consider 

strategy for labor negotiations, including negotiation strategies or developments or discussion and review of 
labor negotiation proposals. 

  
10. Items for Future Agendas  
 
 
11. Tentative Dates for Upcoming Meetings  

- March 18, 2024 Workshop   
  - April 1, 2024 
  - May 6, 2024 

12. Adjournment  





































































PFM Asset Management LLC
NOT FDIC INSURED : NO BANK GUARANTEE : MAY LOSE VALUE

|  pfmam.com 

PFM Asset Management LLC
NOT FDIC INSURED : NO BANK GUARANTEE : MAY LOSE VALUE

Market Update and 
Portfolio Review
Shakopee Public Utilities

612.371.3747

March 4, 2024



AgendaAgenda
▸Market Update 

▸ Portfolio Review



Market Update



Jan-24
3.1%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Jan-21 Jul-21 Jan-22 Jul-22 Jan-23 Jul-23 Jan-24

Consumer Price Index (CPI)
Top-Line Contributions, Year-over-Year Changes

Services (Ex Food & Energy) Goods (Ex Food & Energy) Food Energy Headline YoY%

January CPI Higher Than Expected

Source: Bloomberg; as of January 2024. 4

Lower energy 
and goods prices 

help to offset 
increases in 
wage-driven 
services costs



Retail Sales Fall After 
Strong Holiday Shopping Season

5Source: Bloomberg, as of January 2024.

-4.1%

-3.0%

-1.7%

-1.7%

-1.1%

-0.8%

-0.8%

-0.2%

-0.2%

0.0%

0.1%

0.7%

0.7%

-6.0% -4.0% -2.0% 0.0% 2.0%

Building and Garden Materials

Miscellaneous store retailers

Motor Vehicles and Parts

Gasoline stations

Health & personal care stores

Nonstore Retailers

Total Retail Sales

Sporting goods, hobby, books

Clothing and Accessories

General merchandise stores

Food and beverage stores

Food Service and Drinking

Furniture and Appliances

Retail Sales (Month over Month)
January 2024

3.8%

-1.1%
-0.9%

0.4%
0.7%

0.2%
0.6%0.7%0.8%

-0.3%

0.0%
0.4%

-0.8%

-2.0%

-1.0%

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

Ja
n-

23

Fe
b-

23

M
ar

-2
3

Ap
r-2

3

M
ay

-2
3

Ju
n-

23

Ju
l-2

3

Au
g-

23

Se
p-

23

O
ct

-2
3

N
ov

-2
3

D
ec

-2
3

Ja
n-

24

Retail Sales
Month-over-Month Changes



3

4

5

6

7

1/1/2024 1/8/2024 1/15/2024 1/22/2024 1/29/2024 2/5/2024 2/12/2024

N
um

be
r o

f I
m

pl
ie

d 
C

ut
s 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
4

Fed Funds Rate

Number of Implied Rate Cuts by December 2024

Market Changes Course and 
Prices in Fewer Rate Cuts by Year End 

6Sources: Bloomberg, as of 2/15/2024.

Markets price in more cuts on 
weak inflation data

Fedspeak and stronger-than-expected 
economic releases recalibrates 

market expectations to fewer cuts



Market Projections and Fed’s Dot Plot 
Begin to Converge

7Sources: The Federal Reserve and FRED, data as of 2/15/2024.

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

Jan-20 Jul-20 Jan-21 Jul-21 Jan-22 Jul-22 Jan-23 Jul-23 Jan-24 Jul-24 Jan-25 Jul-25

Fed Funds Rate
Federal Funds Rate Market Projections Dot Plot



 The minutes from the January 31 – February 1, 2024 Federal Open 
Market Committee (“FOMC”) meeting reiterated that quelling price 
pressures remains of paramount importance for the Fed.

 On the current economic backdrop, Committee members noted that 
"growth in U.S. real gross domestic product (“GDP”) was solid in 
the fourth quarter of 2023 but had stepped down from the third 
quarter’s strong pace. Labor market conditions continued to be tight 
but showed further signs of easing.”

 On the appropriate policy actions, "members agreed to maintain the 
target range for the federal funds rate at 5.25% to 5.50%." This was 
supported by slowing economic momentum, easing inflation, and the 
labor market coming into better balance.

 When discussing the future path of policy, the Committee “does not 
expect it will be appropriate to reduce the target range until it has 
gained greater confidence that inflation is moving sustainably 
toward 2.0%.”

FOMC Minutes

8Source: Federal Reserve FOMC Meeting Minutes from the January 31 – February 1, 2024 meeting.



Treasury Yields Slightly Higher in the 0 – 10 
Year Space

Source: Bloomberg, as of 2/26/2024. 9

5.41%

4.70%

4.29% 4.26% 4.37%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

Yi
el

d

Maturity

U.S. Treasury Yield Curve

YTD Range

February 26, 2024

February 20, 2024

3mo     2yr        5yr     7yr            10yr                                                    20yr                       30yr



Portfolio Review



Interest Rate Risk

11

▸ Market values and interest rate movements are inversely related

▸ As interest rates rise or fall market values fluctuate; longer maturity = greater price volatility 

▸ Market value fluctuations will impact total return, which includes unrealized price depreciation 

Interest 
Rates

Market
Value

Market
Value

Interest 
Rates

Current 
Market 



January 31, 2024SPU Portfolio Characteristics

Information as of January 31, 2024.  Sector allocation excludes cash balances of $5,461,445. Credit quality uses S&P rating, or Moody’s equivalent if not 
rated by S&P. Unrealized gains/(losses) are shown on an amortized cost basis.  Please see important disclosures.

12

PORTFOLIO STATISTICS

Book Value $47,401,788

Duration 1.41 Years

Yield at Cost 2.82%

Yield at Market 4.61%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

< 6 Mo. 6-12 Mo. 1-2 Yrs. 2-3 Yrs. 3-4 Yrs. 4-5 Yrs. Over 5 Yrs.

DURATION DISTRIBUTION

SECTOR ALLOCATION

T-Notes | 87%

Agencies | 1%

Agency MBS | 0.4%

Agency CMBS | 10%

Munis | 2%

CREDIT QUALITY

AA+ | 98%

AA | 0.3%

AA- | 0.6%

NR | 1%



Upcoming Maturities

13The chart above does not include closing cash balance of $5,461,445 as of January 31, 2024, and only includes assets managed by PFM Asset 
Management LLC.

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

$4,000,000

$4,500,000

Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25

SPU Portfolio



Shakopee Public Utilities Portfolio Performance

1. Performance on trade date basis, gross (i.e., before fees), in accordance with the CFA Institute’s Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS). 
2. Bank of America / Merrill Lynch Indices provided by Bloomberg Financial Markets. 
3. Includes money market fund/cash balances in performance and duration calculations.
4. Quarterly returns are presented on an unannualized basis. Performance numbers for periods greater than 1 year are presented on an annualized basis.  Information as of December 31, 2023.

14

Total Return Comparison*

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

4Q 20234 Past Year
Since Inception                     

(6/30/2021)

Shakopee Public   
Utilities Portfolio 1.74% 4.58% 0.81%

BoA / ML 0 – 3 Year     
U.S. Treasury Index 2.15% 4.54% 0.72%

 The SPU portfolio 
returned 1.37% for the 
previous quarter

 SPU’s portfolio 
performance has so far 
exceeded the return of 
the benchmark since 
its inception of June 
30, 2021



Accrual Basis Earnings – SPU Portfolio

Inception of June 30, 2021.  Interest earned calculated as the ending accrued interest beginning accrued interest, plus net interest activity. 15

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

Ju
l-2

1
Au

g-
21

Se
p-

21
O

ct
-2

1
N

ov
-2

1
D

ec
-2

1
Ja

n-
22

Fe
b-

22
M

ar
-2

2
Ap

r-2
2

M
ay

-2
2

Ju
n-

22
Ju

l-2
2

Au
g-

22
Se

p-
22

O
ct

-2
2

N
ov

-2
2

D
ec

-2
2

Ja
n-

23
Fe

b-
23

M
ar

-2
3

Ap
r-2

3
M

ay
-2

3
Ju

n-
23

Ju
l-2

3
Au

g-
23

Se
p-

23
O

ct
-2

3
N

ov
-2

3
D

ec
-2

3
Ja

n-
24

Shakopee Public Utilities Interest Earned

Accrual Basis Earnings 3 Months 1 Year Since Inception
Interest Earned $379,487 $1,082,597 $1,696,629 
Realized Gains / (Losses) - ($1,296) ($63,657) 
Change in Amortized Cost $15,504 $119,939 $280,326 
Total Earnings $394,991 $1,201,240 $1,913,298 

Accrual Basis Earnings – Shakopee Public Utilities



Historical Balances and Cash Flow 
Seasonality Factors

16

Month Average Monthly
Balance* Historical Factor

Average 54,387,442 100.00%

January 53,518,982 98.40%

February 53,763,532 98.85%

March 54,168,766 99.60%

April 54,795,522 100.75%

May 55,958,271 101.05%

June 54,749,849 100.67%

July 54,517,122 100.24%

August 54,778,218 100.72%

September 54,947,321 101.03%

October 55,655,036 102.33%

November 55,474,193 102.00%

December 51,322,496 94.36%

▸ There is a seasonal pattern of 
cash flows as the funds 
generally demonstrate 
consistent seasonality 

 High peak balances in 
October and November

 Low minimum balances 
during the months of 
December and January

▸ The SPU’s seasonality is 
statistically significant

Source: Shakopee Public Utilities statement of net positions.



Shakopee Public Utilities: 
Capital Improvement Plan Summary

17Source: This analysis represents data and balances provided by the Utilities.

Electric Summary Year Total

Expenditure Item Description 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 5-YEAR TOTAL

Electric Operating Fund $16,166,345 $6,693,401 $5,868,220 $10,574,213 $8,117,718 $47,419,897 

Relocation Fund $316,864 $60,000 $365,000 $65,000 $65,000 $871,864 

Electric Administrative Fund $461,260 $176,300 $119,831 $200,234 $161,250 $1,118,875 

TOTAL ELECTRIC $16,944,469 $6,929,701 $6,353,051 $10,839,447 $8,343,968 $49,410,636 

Water Summary Year Total

Expenditure Item Description 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 5-YEAR TOTAL

Water Operating Fund $4,501,132 $2,894,693 $2,576,000 $335,000 $335,000 $10,641,825 

Reconstruction Fund $305,000 $170,000 $85,000 $2,070,000 $175,000 $2,805,000 

Trunk Fund $1,087,500 $970,000 $75,000 $150,000 $1,090,000 $3,372,500 

Connection Fund $15,575,000 $5,540,000 $2,070,000 $15,112,500 $24,550,000 $62,847,500 

Water Administrative Fund $153,753 $58,767 $39,944 $66,745 $53,750 $372,958 

TOTAL WATER $21,622,385 $9,633,460 $4,845,944 $17,734,245 $26,203,750 $80,039,783 

TOTALS $38,566,854 $16,563,161 $11,198,995 $28,573,691 $34,547,718 $129,450,419 



SPU Capital Improvement Plan Cash Flows: 
Electric Funds (assumes no financing)

18For illustrative purposes only.  This analysis represents data and balances provided by the Utilities.  Total fund balances includes the Electric CIP 
accounts and only includes assets managed by PFM Asset Management LLC.  Total end of year balances includes summary cash flows for the 
Electric capital improvement plan.

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

$45,000,000

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

Shakopee Public Utilities – Electric

▸ The balances illustrated in the chart below include projected interest for the next five years which 
could change; this also does not include expected revenues, nor does it include petty cash and cash 
equivalents in the Utilities’ various checking, savings, and money market fund accounts



SPU Capital Improvement Plan Cash Flows: 
Water Funds (assumes no financing)

19For illustrative purposes only.  This analysis represents data and balances provided by the Utilities.  Total fund balances includes the Water CIP 
accounts and only includes assets managed by PFM Asset Management LLC.  Total end of year balances includes summary cash flows for the Water 
capital improvement plan.

($80,000,000)

($70,000,000)

($60,000,000)

($50,000,000)

($40,000,000)

($30,000,000)

($20,000,000)

($10,000,000)

$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

Shakopee Public Utilities – Water

▸ The balances illustrated in the chart below include projected interest for the next five years which 
could change; this also does not include expected revenues, nor does it include petty cash and cash 
equivalents in the Utilities’ various checking, savings, and money market fund accounts



Next Steps: Evolution of the Utilities’ Program 
and Strategy Considerations

20

Strategy Benefit Consideration

Extend Duration:
0 – 5yr Benchmark *

• Increased earnings potential
• Capitalize on stable balances

• Increased market                     
value volatility

• Possible realized 
gains/losses on sale of 
investment securities

Keep the Same 
Laddered Strategy:
0 – 3yr Benchmark

• Provides flexibility in a volatile 
rate environment

• Maturity diversification can 
help to mitigate volatility

• Lower portfolio duration
• Negative quarterly returns

Eliminate Benchmark: 
Implement Bullet 
Portfolio Strategy

• Reduced budgetary volatility
• Predictability of income

• Lower liquidity profile
• Cash flow risk

* For consideration: would require an amendment to the investment policy statement to update the benchmark.



Disclaimer

Investment advisory services are provided by PFM Asset Management LLC (“PFMAM”), an investment 
adviser registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and a subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp 
Asset Management, Inc. (“USBAM”). USBAM is a subsidiary of U.S. Bank National Association (“U.S. 
Bank”). U.S. Bank is a separate entity and subsidiary of U.S. Bancorp. U.S. Bank is not responsible for 
and does not guarantee the products, services or performance of PFMAM. The information contained is 
not an offer to purchase or sell any securities. Additional applicable regulatory information is available 
upon request. 

For more information regarding PFMAM’s services please visit www.pfmam.com.

Disclaimer

21

















Water Tank Colocation Meeting  
 S PU Off ices  –  Fe br uar y  1 4,  2 024  

PSC Alliance Inc.  Page 1 DRAFT 

 

Attending: 

County Staff :  Adam Jessen, Scott Haas, Connor Lewis (remotely)  

SPU Staff : Greg Drent, Ryan Halverson, Joe Adams, Lon Schemel, Tony 

Myers, Phi l ip Dubbe 

Jeff  Nelson, PSC Al l iance 

Purpose:  To discuss prospective colocation by Scott County to 

establ ish a publ ic safety radio communications s i te us ing SPU property 

and tank to support e levated antennas.   

Discussion Topics:  

•  County seeks to enhance publ ic safety radio coverage on the 

ARMER government radio system in the more densely developed 

areas of Shakopee.   

•  County proposes approx. 1,200 square fee t of ground space for 

equipment shelter (concrete precast construct ion) and up to three 

omni antennas atop the tank connected via semi -r igid coaxia l  

cable.   

•  ARPA funding avai lable to County for certa in capita l  costs.  

•  Goal would be to b id the project in ’24, insta l l  shelter upon 

del ivery, and fol low with antennas after SPU’s tank recondit ioning 

project occurs in ’25.  

•  County has developed 3 -page conceptual s i te plan (distr ibuted)  

•  Storm water runoff  issues considered  

•  Size of ut i l i ty easement a long North s ide of property (can i t be 

reduced to 5 ’  on ei ther s ide of pipe? ) . Need to show exist ing SPU 

watermain on plan sheets.  

•  Estimated electr ic service 240 VAC, 200 amp for County ’s bui lding 

& contents  

•  Natural gas to fuel standby generator enclosed within the bui lding  

•  Three-compartment bui lding proposed (radio equipment, 

generator, f iber optic regeneration and data servers)  

•  Lease:  County has sample lease language avai lable; other 

col located s i tes are cost free to County  in return for 800 MHz 

radio service.  



Water Tank Colocation Meeting  
 S PU Off ices  –  Fe br uar y  1 4,  2 024  

PSC Alliance Inc.  Page 1 DRAFT 

 

•  Routing of coax:  More detai l  would be provided in Construct ion 

Documents fol lowing approval in concept and agreement 

concerning lease T&C 

 

•  SPU’s interest in potentia l  use of ARMER system for internal 

communications with staff/f leet  

o  Scott  Haas expla ined what was done for publ ic works and 

local government operations for other agencies in County, 

regional ly, and statewide  

o  Fleet s ize, use cases, and communications “prof i les” would 

determine detai ls  

•  SPU staff  interest in potentia l  disaster recovery (DR) colocation at 

a s imi lar s i te County is construct ing in Spring Lake Township at 

Highway shop campus  

•  Top mounted antennas may result in need to e levate aviat ion 

obstruct ion beacon atop the tank as has been done in some other 

colocation insta l lat ions  

•  The exist ing hydrant on SE s ide of the tank perimeter is not 

functional 

•  Discussion about maintenance access and frequency of v is i ts; 

antenna access is rare after insta l lat ion/commiss ioning; County 

staff  re lated access experience/process/noti f icat ions at other s i tes 

where they have col located f iber equipment with radio equipment   

•  County intends to insta l l  remotely monitored exter ior CCTV 

cameras on bui lding and to be able to v iew act iv i ty internal within 

the shelter 

•  Discussion about a lternative potentia l  access from road to 

County ’s shelter by establ ishing a new driveway along north end 

of parcel; separate gate; fence l ine re -arrangement. This option 

was discussed with Scott County Highway Department and an 

addit ional s i te access a long CH 83 was not supported.  

•  Bui lding aesthetic was discussed  and typical  aesthetic was shared 

on-screen. 

•  County seeks agreement in pr inciple from SPU Board to continue 

negotiat ions and plan development with affected staff   

o  Next SPU board meeting 3/4/2024  

 



 

1 

COUNTY OF SCOTT 
RADIO TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT  

 
THIS AGREEMENT, is entered by and between the County of Scott, Minnesota, a 

municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "County," and Shakopee Public 
Utilities, 255 Sarazin Street, Shakopee, Minnesota, a municipal utilities commission, 
hereinafter referred to as "SPU." 

 
RECITALS: 

 
A. Pursuant to Minn. Stat. Sec. 373.01, subd. 1(a)(5), each County is a body 

politic and corporate and may make all contracts and do all other acts in 
relation to the property and concerns of the County necessary to the exercise 
of its corporate powers. 

 
B. SPU owns property located at Parcel ID Number 270810130 including a 

water tower. 
 
C. County is responsible for maintaining the emergency response radio system 

for all law enforcement agencies within the county. Replacement and 
expansion of these facilities fall within the County’s role to maintain. 

 
D. County is looking to expand the emergency response radio system where 

there are known service gaps in the City of Shakopee that will become a 
greater public safety concern as development continues in the area. 

 
E. County has explored many locations/options for a new tower and have 

discovered a tower owned by SPU is the most suited location for expanding 
the emergency response radio system.  

 
F. County, in addition to leasing space on the SPU tower, wishes to install an 

equipment shelter building, emergency generator, and related equipment on 
the SPU property adjacent to the tower. 

 

G. The County seeks to enter into a lease agreement for the needed provision of 
leasing space on the SPU tower located on Parcel ID Number 270810130. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual undertakings and agreement 

contained within this agreement, the County and SPU hereby agrees as follows: 
 
1. The recitals above are hereby restated and incorporated herein. 
 
2. The LESSOR and the LESSEE, in consideration of the rents, covenants, and 

consideration hereinafter specified, do hereby agree each with the other as follows: 
 

a. Description of Premises: The LESSOR grants and the LESSEE accepts the 
right to use certain exclusive and non-exclusive portions of ground space and 
tower space on property owned by SPU and is shown on Exhibit A (“Site 
Plan”). 

 



 

2 

b. Term: The term of this Lease Agreement shall be from April 1, 2024, to March 
31, 2049. The Lease Agreement shall automatically extend for five-year 
periods thereafter unless it is terminated as set out herein. All provisions of this 
Lease Agreement shall remain in force and effect if the Lease Agreement is 
automatically extended, with no option to negotiate or renegotiate any new or 
existing terms or conditions. This extension merely continues the original 
Lease Agreement. Unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties in a separate 
writing, the Lease Agreement shall be terminated as set for in Section 4 of this 
Lease Agreement. 

 
c. Use and Access: SPU hereby grants to the County the right to install, maintain, 

and operate the County’s emergency response radio system on the SPU water 
tower and locate the communications equipment building on the 
communications equipment site in accordance with Exhibit A (“Site Plan”). The 
County’s construction plan for work on the site must be approved by SPU prior 
to commencement of work. All construction and installation and maintenance of 
equipment shall be done in a professional manner. Any substantive alterations 
or additions to the location of the County’s communications equipment, 
including changes to the configuration of antennas and equipment on the SPU 
water tower or the communications equipment building, shall be subject to prior 
written approval of SPU; such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, 
delayed, or conditioned. 

 
SPU shall permit County, its employees, agents, and contractors access to the 
SPU property on a twenty-four (24) hour, seven (7) days a week basis, during 
the term of this agreement, subject to procedures mutually established 
between SPU and the County. The County, its employees, agents, and 
contractors may operate, drive, and temporarily park necessary vehicles on 
SPU property in areas designated by SPU in order to transport equipment, 
supplies, materials, and personnel in connection with County’s permitted use of 
the site. County shall, at its sole cost and expense, repair or restore SPU 
property to the condition it was in prior to entrance by County, its employees, 
agents, and contractors. 

 
Before the County communication equipment is approved to be installed on the 
SPU water tower, the County must obtain all necessary governmental 
approvals including, but not limited to, the Federal Communication Commission 
(“FCC”) and Federal Aviation Commission (“FAA”), if applicable, pay for the 
reasonable cost of (i) a radio frequency interference study carried out by the 
SPU communications consultant showing that that County’s intended use will 
not interfere with any existing communications facilities on the SPU water 
tower and (ii) if necessary, an engineering study showing that the SPU water 
tower is able to support the County’s communication equipment , without 
prejudice to the SPU’s use of the water tower. If the study finds that there is 
potential for interference that cannot be reasonably remedied or is prejudicial to 
other users of the SPU water tower, SPU will not approve of the installation of 
the County’s communication equipment or the communication building. 

 
d. County Conditions: The lease granted to the County under this Agreement is 

subject to the following conditions: 



 

3 

1) County shall submit to SPU a construction plan to include the location of 
coax cable, utilities, installation drawings, and building and equipment 
placement plans, which must be approved by SPU in accordance with 
SPU’s adopted standards prior to commencement of any construction or 
installation of any of the County's communication equipment, the County's 
communication building, or the installation of any utility on the SPU water 
tower. 

2) The County’s Communication Equipment placed at the communication 
equipment site by the County, or others in accordance with this 
Agreement, shall be installed, operated, and maintained in accordance 
with sound engineering practices and all applicable rules and regulations 
established by the FAA and the FCC. 

3) The County shall not sublease, license, or otherwise permit use of, space 
or capacity on the SPU water tower or the communication equipment site 
without written consent of SPU. 

4) The County shall not request or provide advertising of any kind on the 
SPU property. 

5) The County shall arrange for separate metering of electricity and other 
utilities associated with the County’s use of the communication equipment 
site and shall pay all costs of utilities consumed by county operations. 

 
e. Rent: The County shall not be required to pay rent to SPU for use of the water 

tower and the communications equipment site provided County provides SPU 
with 800 MHz public safety communication services as described in a 
subscriber agreement which must be executed prior to activation and use of 
system.  

 
f. County Installed Property: Any equipment, trade fixtures, or personal property 

installed on the SPU water tower or communication equipment site by County, 
including but not limited to, antennas, antenna mounts, transmission lines, the 
communication equipment building, emergency generators and fuel tank shall 
remain the property of the county. County shall remove any or all of the above 
equipment, fixtures, buildings or other property at the expiration or termination 
of this Agreement or any extension thereof, even though said equipment, 
fixtures, building or property are attached to the SPU water tower or the 
communications equipment site unless otherwise agreed to by SPU. The 
County shall not permit any liens of any kind or nature to be placed on the SPU 
property as a result of the County’s work. 

 
g. Duties of SPU: SPU agrees that in exercising its ownership responsibilities of 

the SPU property, of which the communication equipment site is a part, 
including the maintenance, repair, alterations and construction relating thereto, 
SPU shall comply with all applicable laws, statutes, rules, ordinances and 
regulations, including but not limited to building code, disabilities access, 
zoning, air quality and pollution control, as issued by any federal, state or local 
political subdivisions having jurisdiction and authority in connection with the 
SPU property. 

 
SPU shall be responsible, at its sole cost, for the general maintenance of the 
water tower including obstruction lights, light monitoring and any other FCC or 
FAA requirements, inspections, painting, and any other measures necessary to 



 

4 

maintain the safety and utility of the water tower for its intended purpose, 
unless such costs are incurred due to installation of County equipment or 
structures or County’s actions upon the SPU property. SPU shall be 
responsible, at its sole cost, for providing a plowed access road to the SPU 
property, and for providing weed control, tree trimming, lawn mowing and other 
related maintenance duties at the SPU property. Nothing in this provision shall 
preclude SPU and the County from cooperating to effectively monitor the 
operating performance of obstruction lighting through technology installed by 
the County as part of its occupancy of the water tower or the communication 
equipment site where it is determined to be in the mutual benefit of the Parties. 
 
SPU agrees to give reasonable advance notice of any major repair or 
maintenance activities related to the water tower or SPU property operations. 
In case of an emergency, notification is not required; however, the County will 
be notified as soon as possible of a recognized emergency. In the event that 
the use of the water tower for water service, or any necessary maintenance or 
repair to the water tower is interrupted or made impractical because of the 
County's communication equipment on the water tower, SPU may interrupt the 
County’s use of the water tower as reasonably necessary to prevent 
interruption of water service or interruption of maintenance and repair of the 
water tower. 
 
SPU agrees to notify County within fifteen (15) business days of any requests 
to change or install new or additional wireless telecommunications equipment 
on the water tower or at the SPU property and to provide the County with 
technical specifications necessary to permit appropriate evaluation. An 
exception will be made for existing leases wherein tenants have the right to 
change out existing antennas with replacement antennas. Replacement 
antennas must be similar in size and weight, and the location of the antenna 
cannot be changed without prior notice, review and approval. The County shall 
have fifteen (15) business days to evaluate a proposed change or installation 
to determine if the proposed change or installation will physically or 
electronically interfere with the County’s then-current use of the water tower or 
the SPU property and shall forward said evaluation to SPU in writing within 
said fifteen (15) day period. SPU agrees not to permit the installation of any 
additional uses on the water tower that will result in harmful interference with 
the County’s communication equipment or interference with equipment of any 
sub-lease or licensee approved by SPU. 
 
SPU shall provide County with two (2) sets of keys to access any locks 
necessary to enter the SPU property and access the water tower. SPU and 
County agree to mutually cooperate to establish reasonable procedures for 
access to those portions of the water tower where antennas are installed to 
ensure safety of maintenance operations and the security of all antenna 
systems. 

 
h. Duties of County: Except as otherwise provided herein, County shall furnish all 

materials and services required for its use of the water tower and the 
communication equipment building, and shall maintain the communication 
equipment and the communication equipment building in a reasonably good 
condition and state of repair during the terms of this lease or continuance of its 



 

5 

use, whichever is greater, and shall surrender the communication equipment to 
SPU at the termination of such tenancy in such condition as the same were in 
at the commencement of this Agreement or construction thereon, reasonable 
wear and damage by the elements excepted. County agrees to remove below 
ground foundations and wiring upon termination of this Agreement unless 
waived in writing by SPU after consultation with County. 
 
Prior to SPU painting and reconditioning the water tower, the County shall, at 
its expense, have its communication equipment tested by a third party 
consultant of the County's choice, to certify that the antennas, coaxial 
transmission lines, transmitters and receivers are in proper working condition. 
Testing results must be acknowledged in writing to SPU. Upon completion of 
the painting and water tower reconditioning, the County shall, at its expense, 
test its communication equipment as provided above and certify the results to 
SPU. Final testing and certification of the results must be completed within 
three (3) weeks of notification by SPU. The County may elect to waive testing 
of its communication equipment. If the County so elects, SPU shall not be 
liable for any damage to the County's communication equipment, and repair of 
the County’s communication equipment shall be at the County's sole expense. 
The County shall provide the SPU’s painting contractor with pertinent safety 
instructions relative to working near the antennas, if necessary, the County 
must lower the power levels while the SPU’s painting contractor is working 
near the antennas. 
 
Any additional expense of repainting, repairing or maintaining the water tower 
reasonably incurred by SPU as a direct consequence of the presence of the 
County’s communication equipment being located thereon shall be paid 
promptly by the County to SPU upon receipt of SPU's written notice of such 
additional cost, which notice shall state the reasons for the incurring of such 
costs and shall include a reasonable itemization of such costs. Any such costs 
shall be paid by County within thirty (30) days after notice has been sent by 
SPU concerning such costs. 
 
County will provide security and background information on persons 
designated by County to access the site. 
 
County shall pay, as they become due and payable, all fees, charges and 
expenses currently required for licenses and/or permits required for County’s 
use of the site. 

 
i. Damage to site: If the water tower is permanently damaged or destroyed by 

acts of nature, fire or other casualty and County communication equipment or 
communication equipment building become permanently inoperable as a result 
thereof, SPU may elect to: 
1) Terminate this Agreement upon one hundred eighty (180) days notice to 

County; or 
2) To repair, restore or reconstruct the water tower at no expense to County. 

 
SPU shall not be responsible to County for damage or destruction of County 
communication equipment or the County communication equipment building 
unless caused by the negligent or willful acts of SPU, its agents, contractors or 



 

6 

employees. The County may terminate this Agreement upon damage or 
destruction of the water tower or may reconstruct and/or replace all of County 
communication equipment and/or the County communication equipment 
building at its sole cost and expense in the event that SPU decides to repair, 
restore or reconstruct the water tower. 

 
3. Sale or Assignment 
 In the event the SPU property of which the water tower and communication 

equipment site are a part shall be sold, conveyed, transferred, assigned, leased or 
sublet, or if SPU shall sell, convey, transfer or assign this Agreement or if for any 
reason there shall be a change in the manner in the obligations here under, proper 
written notice of such change must be delivered to county as promptly as possible. 

 
4. Quiet Enjoyment 

The County shall peaceably and quietly use and enjoy the communication 
equipment site and the SPU water tower for the purpose of installing, removing, 
replacing, maintaining and operating the County’s communication equipment and 
communication equipment building consistent with the terms and conditions of this 
agreement. Operation of the County’s communication equipment at the 
communication equipment site shall be conducted so as not to exceed Maximum 
Permissible Emission (MPE) radio-frequency radiation exposure levels as specified 
in 47 C.F.R. § 1.1310 and so as not to interfere with any of the other current users 
of wireless telecommunication transmission on the water tower. County will install 
noise suppression equipment and take all reasonable steps to minimize the offsite 
impact associated with running the standby emergency generator to be included in 
the equipment shelter. Except for routine testing and periodic maintenance activity, 
the generator will only be operated as necessary to deliver reliable power for public 
safety communications during times of commercial power interruption. Testing and 
maintenance operations will be limited to daytime hours (8 am to 5 pm) Monday 
through Friday. 

 
5. User Priority 

Unless precluded by existing contractual obligations, the parties agree that the 
following priorities of use, in descending order, shall apply in the event of 
communication interference or other conflict while this agreement is in effect. SPU, 
for its part, agrees to include this statement of user priority in all new leases or 
extension of existing leases with currently sees for antenna space on the subject 
water tower. 
 
a. SPU water storage and distribution needs and the SPU communication needs; 
b. County law enforcement, fire, and ambulance services, that are not provided 

by SPU, provided they comply with this agreement; and 
c. Existing leases of the water tower and the SPU property, unless there is a 

material modification of existing equipment configuration and/or frequency 
characteristics. 

d. Other government related entities who offer a service to the general public for a 
fee, in a manner similar to a public utility, such as long distance and cellular 
telephone, not including radio or which the County is legally authorized to 
provide. This use shall be nonexclusive, and SPU specifically reserves the right 
to allow the water tower and SPU property to be used by other parties and to 



 

7 

make additions, deletions, or modifications to its own facilities on the water 
tower and the SPU property. 

e. New leases or renewals of existing leases for non-public safety 
communications. 

 
6. Default by SPU 

If SPU shall default in the performance of any of the terms or provision of this 
agreement, County shall promptly so notify SPU in writing. If SPU shall fail to cure 
such default within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice, or if the default is of 
such character as to require more than thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice to 
cure such default, then in either event, County may cure such default, and any 
reasonable and actual expenses paid by County shall be paid by SPU to County 
within thirty (30) days after written invoice is delivered to SPU. This provision in no 
way limits County’s other remedies for breach under common law or this agreement. 

 
7. Default by County 

If County shall default in the performance of any of the terms or provision of this 
agreement, SPU shall promptly so notify County in writing. If County shall fail to cure 
such default within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice, or if the default is of 
such character as to require more than thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice to 
cure such default, then in either event, SPU may cure such default, and any 
reasonable and actual expenses paid by SPU shall be paid by County to SPU within 
thirty (30) days after written invoice is delivered to County. This provision in no way 
limits SPU’s other remedies for breach under common law or this agreement. 

 
8. Cooperation with MESB 

The 800 MHz public safety radio communication system contemplated in this 
agreement falls within the jurisdiction of the Metropolitan Emergency Service Board 
(MESB) for region-wide public safety radio communications. County will be 
responsible for providing MESB with timely notices of any proposed changes to the 
terms set forth in this agreement. County will, by June 1 of each calendar year, 
provide MESB with a proposed budget for anticipated expenses of operating the 
800 MHz radio system for the upcoming calendar year to assist the MESB in 
preparing its budget for the next calendar year. County will periodically bill MESB for 
all costs and expenses of operating the system which are eligible for reimbursement 
by the MESB including, but not limited to, facilities rents and utility expenses. 
County will provide coordination between the SPU and the MESB, in accordance 
with paragraph 2c above, in the event that MESB desires to add additional facilities, 
equipment or capabilities to the system being constructed on SPU property pursuant 
to this agreement. County will be solely responsible for all coordination with the 
MESB regarding the provisions of this paragraph. 

 
9. Authorized Agents 
 

The Parties shall appoint an authorized agent for the purpose of administration of 
this agreement. SPU is notified of the authorized agent of Scott County as follows: 
 

Name, or his/her successor 
Title 
Scott County 
200 Fourth Avenue West 



 

8 

Shakopee, MN  55379 
(952) 496-XXXX 
XXXXXX@co.scott.mn.us 

 
The County is notified the authorized agent for SPU is as follows: 

 
Name, or his/her successor 
Title 
Agency Name 
Address 
CITY, MN  ZIP 
(952) Phone 
Email 

 
10. County and State Audit 
 

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. Section 16C.05, Subd. 5, the books, records, documents, 
and accounting procedures and practices of SPU relative to this agreement shall 
be subject to examination by the County and the State Auditor. Complete and 
accurate records of the work performed pursuant to this agreement shall be kept 
by SPU for a minimum of six (6) years following termination of this agreement for 
such auditing purposes. The retention period shall be automatically extended 
during the course of any administrative or judicial action involving the County 
regarding matters to which the records are relevant. The retention period shall be 
automatically extended until the administrative or judicial action is finally 
completed or until the authorized agent of the County notifies SPU in writing that 
the records need no longer be kept. 

 
11. Indemnity 
 

SPU agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its employees and officials 
harmless from any claims, demands, actions or causes of action, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses resulting directly or indirectly from any 
negligent act or omission on the part of SPU, or its subcontractors, partners or 
independent contractors or any of their agents or employees, in the performance 
of or with relation to any of the work or services to be performed or furnished by 
the SPU or the subcontractors, partners or independent contractors or any of their 
agents or employees under the agreement. 

 
12. Force Majeure 
 

County and SPU agree that SPU shall not be liable for any delay or inability to 
perform this agreement, directly or indirectly caused by, or resulting from, strikes, 
labor troubles, accidents, fire, flood, breakdowns, war, riot, civil commotion, lack of 
material, delays of transportation, acts of God or other cause beyond reasonable 
control of SPU and the County. 

 
13. Data Practices 
 

a. SPU, its agents, employees and any subcontractors of SPU, in providing all 
services hereunder, agree to abide by the provisions of the Minnesota 



 

9 

Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, as amended, and Minn. 
Rules promulgated pursuant to Ch. 13. SPU understands that it must comply 
with these provisions as if it were a government entity. SPU agrees to 
indemnify and hold the County, its officers, department heads and employees 
harmless from any claims resulting from SPU’s unlawful disclosure, failure to 
disclose or use of data protected under state and federal laws. 

 
b. If SPU suspects or becomes aware of any unauthorized access to any Client 

Data or Personal Data by any unauthorized person or third party, or becomes 
aware of any other security breach relating to Personal Data held or stored 
by SPU (including privacy related incidents that might, upon further 
investigation, be deemed to be a Breach) under this Agreement or in 
connection with the performance of the Professional Services or other 
services performed under this Agreement or any Statement(s) of Work (“Data 
Breach”), SPU shall immediately notify County in writing and shall fully 
cooperate with County at SPU’s expense to prevent or stop such Data 
Breach. This notification will include, to the extent known: 

 
1) The names of the individuals whole Protected Health Information (PHI), 

or Personal Identifying Information (PII) was involved in the Breach; 
2) The circumstances surrounding the Breach; 
3) The date of the Breach and the date of its discovery; 
4) The information Breached; 
5) Any steps the impacted individuals should take to protect themselves; 
6) The steps SPU is taking to investigate the Breach, mitigate losses, and 

protect against future Breaches; and, 
7) A contact person who can provide additional information about the 

Breach. 
 

In the event of a security breach, the SPU shall take prompt corrective action 
to cure any such deficiencies and any action pertaining to such unauthorized 
disclosure required by applicable federal and state laws and regulations. SPU 
shall fully and immediately comply with applicable state and federal laws, and 
shall take the appropriate steps to remedy such Data Breach. 

 
 
14. Termination 
 

If the County determines the water tower and communication equipment site are 
no longer necessary for the County’s public safety radio communication system, 
the County shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon providing twelve 
(12) months written notice to SPU and shall remove its communication equipment 
and communication equipment building according to the terms of this Agreement. 
 
If SPU determines that the water tower is no longer functional or no longer needed 
for its intended purpose and that the water tower will be razed or converted to 
another use incompatible with the uses in this lease, SPU shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement upon providing twelve (12) months written notice to 
County to remove its communication equipment and communication equipment 
building at County’s sole cost and expense. 
 



 

10 

Upon removal of County installed property, SPU property shall be left in such 
condition as it was at the time County installed its antenna facilities, equipment, 
fixtures or property, reasonable wear and damage by the elements excepted. 
County shall take all necessary steps to restore the water tower and the site to the 
condition that existed prior to the installation of County’s antenna facilities, 
equipment fixtures or property, reasonable wear and damage by the elements 
excepted. The terms and conditions of this paragraph shall survive the termination 
of this Agreement. 

 
15. Notices 
 

Any notices to be given under this agreement shall be given by enclosing the 
same in a sealed envelope, postage prepaid, and depositing the same with the 
United States Postal Service, addressed to the authorized agent of SPU, at its 
address stated herein, or to the authorized agent of the County at the address 
stated herein. 

 
16. Controlling Law 
 

The laws of the State of Minnesota shall govern all questions and interpretations 
concerning the validity and construction of this agreement, the legal relations 
between the parties and performance under the agreement. The appropriate 
venue and jurisdiction for any litigation hereunder will be those courts located 
within the County of Scott, State of Minnesota. Litigation, however, in the federal 
courts involving the parties will be in the appropriate federal court within the State 
of Minnesota. 

 
17. Successors and Assigns 
 

The County and SPU, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, successors, 
assigns, and legal representatives to the other party to this agreement and to the 
partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives of such other party with 
respect to all covenants of this agreement. Neither the County nor SPU shall 
assign, sublet, or transfer any interest in this agreement without the prior written 
consent of the other. 
 
The parties acknowledge that the lease granted to the County under this 
agreement is nonexclusive. Nothing in this agreement shall preclude SPU from 
leasing other space for communications equipment or allowing access to the water 
tower to any person or entity subject to compliance with the adopted security 
policy requirements as stated in paragraph 2g. 

 
18. Equal Employment and Americans with Disabilities 
 

In connection with the work under this agreement, SPU agrees to comply with the 
applicable provisions of state and federal equal employment opportunity and 
nondiscrimination statutes and regulations. In addition, upon entering into this 
agreement, SPU certifies that it has been made fully aware of Scott County's 
Equal Employment Opportunity and Americans With Disabilities Act Policies, that it 
supports these policies and that it will conduct its own employment practices in 
accordance therewith. Failure on the part of SPU to conduct its own employment 



 

11 

practices in accordance with County Policy may result in the withholding of all or 
part of regular payments by the County due under this agreement unless or until 
SPU complies with the County policy, and/or suspension or termination of this 
agreement. 

 
19. Debarment/Suspension 

 
SPU certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible or voluntary excluded from covered transactions by 
any local, State, or Federal department or agency. SPU shall notify County 
immediately, in writing, of any change in debarment status. 

 
20. Changes/Amendments 
 

The parties agree that no change or modification to this agreement, or any 
attachments hereto, shall have any force or effect unless the change is reduced to 
writing, dated, and made part of this agreement. The execution of the change shall 
be authorized and signed in the same manner as this agreement, or according to 
other written policies of the original parties. 

 
21. Severability 
 

In the event any provision of this agreement shall be held invalid and 
unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall be valid and binding upon the 
parties unless such invalidity or non-enforceability would cause the agreement to 
fail its purpose. One or more waivers by either party of any provision, term, 
condition or covenant shall not be construed by the other party as a waiver of a 
subsequent breach of the same by the other party. 

 
22. Entire Agreement 
 

It is understood and agreed that the entire agreement of the parties is contained 
herein and that this agreement supersedes all oral agreements and negotiations 
between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof as well as any previous 
agreements presently in effect between the County and SPU relating to the 
subject matter hereof. 

 



 

12 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be duly 
executed intending to be bound thereby.  
 
SCOTT COUNTY SHAKOPEE PUBLIC UTILITIES 
 
 
 
by_______________________________ by________________________________  
 Name   NAME 
 Title   Title  
 
 
Date_____________________________ Date______________________________  
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
 Jeanne Andersen 
 Assistant Scott County Attorney 
 
 

Date_____________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









Xref ..\CONFLUENCE BASE FILES_X-20348 SITE\XREFS\Z_ARCH BUILDING BLOCK_02.09.2023.dwg

72
08

82
4.1

8
FGOLF

GOAL

S

76
04

81
7.2

5
SGN

76
05

81
6.8

0
SGN

78
32

81
6.8

1
SGN

78
33

81
6.6

7
SGN

79
04

81
8.0

2
SGN

S

79
14

81
8.9

1

SGN

79
35

81
9.2

8
FGOLF

GOAL

S

79
42

81
9.5

7
SGN

80
13

81
8.6

7
PLA

YGROUND
PLA

YGROUND

80
53

81
8.8

6
SGN

80
55

81
8.6

3
SGN

80
56

81
8.4

0

SGN

80
57

81
9.3

7

SGN

"

"

81
11

81
9.5

9

BBQ G
RILL

81
56

82
1.5

6
FGOLF

GOAL

81
83

81
6.9

7

SGN

82
55

81
8.5

9
SGN

VLT

82
68

81
8.7

0
SGN

82
71

81
6.5

4
SGN

82
78

81
8.2

0

SGN

82
82

81
7.2

6
FGOLF

GOAL

82
87

81
6.3

3
FGOLF

GOAL

83
14

81
4.2

4
co

rru
ga

ted
 m

eta
l p

ipe
 15

"

ST

ST

84
98

82
0.1

4
SGN

ST

ST

ST

S

85
76

81
5.6

5
FGOLF

GOAL

28"

85
90

81
7.2

8
SGN

8"

16"

18"
18"

14" 14"

12"
12"

12"
16"14"

14"

24"

16"

16"

16"

16"

16"

16"

20"

24"
18"

12"
12"

18"
16"

16"

14"

18"

18"

12"

G

10014
818.07
SML B

W

10023
817.52
WML E

10031
814.31
SML E

26"

23"

23"

17"

RIM 816.04INVINVINVINVINVINV

RIM 816.59INVINVINVINVINVINV

RIM 815.84INVINVINVINVINVINV

10039
810.32
DCU: 24

10040
810.48
DCU: 15

RIM 814.47INVINVINVINVINVINV

FP

RIM 817.40INVINVINVINVINVINV

S RIM 817.64INVINVINVINVINVINV

G

G

G

I
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

G
G

G
G

G
G

I

I

I

I
I

I
I

I
I

>

>

>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

OS

>

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
FO

FO
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R
TV-BU

R

P-BUR

P-
BU

R
P-

BU
R

P-
BU

R
P-

BU
R

P-
BU

R
P-

BU
R

P-
BU

R
P-

BU
R

P-
BU

R

P-
BU

R

P-BUR
P-BUR

CENTERPOINT

CENTERPOINT

LUMEN/CENTURYLINK
(2) COPPER & (1) FIBER

XCEL TRANSMISSION

UNKNOWN GAS

ZAYO

MCI

SPUC WATER

PROPOSED BUILDING SITE

EX. BUILDING

5/24/2023

Sa
ve

: 5
/2

4/
20

23
 1

2:
19

 P
M

 b
ha

ns
en

 P
lo

t: 
5/

24
/2

02
3 

1:
25

 P
M

 X
:\A

E\
C

\C
O

N
FC

\1
71

75
6\

5-
fin

al
-d

sg
n\

51
-d

ra
w

in
gs

\1
0-

C
iv

il\
ca

d\
dw

g\
sh

ee
t\C

O
17

17
56

EX
1.

dw
g

0

feetscale

40 8040

20

PROJECT NO.

DATE:

CONFC171756 EX. UTILITY LAYOUT
SANDVENTURE

SHAKOPEE, MINNESOTA



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000 3,500 4,000 4,500 5,000

Pr
es

su
re

 (p
si)

Flow (gpm)

Modeled  Flow Curve(s)
Existing Upgrade to 8-inch Upgrade to 8-inch + Loop 20 psi res.

Results from SPU Water Model Operated by SEH 2/15/2024
Water Towers Assumed to be 5' Below Overflow



mheckman
Polygonal Line

mheckman
Polygon

mheckman
Oval

mheckman
Callout
See Page 1

mheckman
Polygon

mheckman
Line

mheckman
Polygon

mheckman
Polygonal Line

mheckman
Oval

mheckman
Polygonal Line

mheckman
Oval

mheckman
Line

mheckman
Callout
-Remove existing bend-Connect to Existing 6" WM with 8"x6" Reducer

mheckman
Callout
-F&I 20LF  8" DIP WAtermain-F&I 8" GV-F/I 8" 45 Degree Bend

mheckman
Callout
8" DIP Watermain

mheckman
Callout
-8"x6" Tee5 LF 6" DIP WatermainHydrant and Valve

mheckman
Callout
Connect Existing 1.5" Water service to new 8" WM and install Curb Stop and Box

mheckman
Callout
Remove and replace 30LF Curb and Gutter

mheckman
Callout
Remove and Replace 1,000 SF Bituminous Pavement 

mheckman
Callout
Remove and Replace 180 SF 5" Concrete Walk

mheckman
Callout
Inv. 811 (per asbuilt)



G

W

26"

23"

23"

17"

RIM 816.04INVINVINVINVINVINV

RIM 816.59INVINVINVINVINVINVRIM 815.84INVINVINVINVINVINV

RIM 814.47INVINVINVINVINVINV
FP

RIM 817.40INVINVINVINVINVINVS
RIM 817.64INVINVINVINVINVINV

G

G

G

G

G

G

I

I

I

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I I

>

>

>

>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>
>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>

>>
>>

>>

>>

>>
>>

>>

>>
>>

>>
>>

>>

>>>>>>>>>>>>>>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

TV-BUR

TV-BUR

TV-BUR

TV-BUR

TV-BUR

TV-BUR

TV-BUR

TV-BUR

TV-BUR

TV-BUR

TV-BUR

TV-BUR

I
I

I
I

79
04

81
8.0

2
SGN

79
14

81
8.9

1

SGN

81
11

81
9.5

9
BBQ G

RILL

81
83

81
6.9

7
SGN

82
78

81
8.2

0

SGN

FGOLFGOAL

FGOLFGOAL

FGOLFGOAL

28" 8"

16"
18"

18"

14"

14"

12" 12"

12"
16"

14"

14"

24"

SAND VENTURE
SWIM POND

ADAMS STREET S

P-BUR

P-BUR

P-BUR

P-BUR

P-BUR

P-BUR

P-BUR

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

I

I I I

G

G G

E

PROP. SANDVENTURE BUILDING
FFE = 818.80' (100'-0")

FOFOFO

HH

HH FO FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

FO

E

CONNECT TO EX. SANITARY
SEWER SERVICE. APPROX.

INVERT ELEV. = 811.79' (93'-0")

INSTALL SANITARY SEWER SERVICE (2.0% SLOPE)
THROUGH FOUNDATION. SEE FOUNDATION PLANS
AND PLUMBING PLANS FOR ADDITIONAL DETAILS.

INVERT ELEV. = 812.80' (94'-0")

MAINTAIN MIN. 18" VERTICAL SEPARATION
BETWEEN PROP. WATERMAIN AND PROP.
SANITARY SEWER SERVICE. UTILIZE VERTICAL
WATERMAIN OFFSET AS NEEDED.

CONNECT TO EX. 6" WATERMAIN
IF EX. PIPE MATERIAL DIFFERS

FROM PROPOSED PIPE, PROVIDE
ADAPTIVE CONNECTION.

INSTALL TWO (2) 45° BENDS

INSTALL TWO (2) 45° BENDS

TAP PROP. 6" WATERMAIN WITH
TWO (2) 1.5" CORPORATION STOPS.
CONFIRM TAP LOCATIONS WITH
ENGINEER PRIOR TO PERFORMING
WORK.

TWO (2) 2.0" COPPER (TYPE K)
WATERMAIN SERVICES.

CONNECT TO EX. WATER SERVICE.

GAS SERVICE TO BE INSTALLED BY
CENTERPOINT ENERGY. COORDINATE

CONNECTION AND METER INSTALLATION.

APPROX. 5.7' TO CENTER
OF TRANSFORMER.

ELEC. TRANSFORMER TO
BE INSTALLED BY SHAKOPEE

PUBLIC UTILITIES. COORDINATE
 CONNECTION AND METER

INSTALLATION.

INSTALL TWO (2) 1.5" CURB STOPS.

PROPOSED 2" NONMETALLIC CONDUIT (EMPTY)

DRAIN PIPE. REFER TO SHEET
C007 FOR PIPE MATERIAL AND

INVERT ELEVATIONS.

PROPOSED STORM DRAIN.
REFER TO PLUMBING PLAN .

6" PVC C900 WITH
C153 COMPACT DUCTILE
IRON FITTINGS.

INSTALL TWO (2) 45° VERTICAL BENDS
DOWN TO GET MIN. 7.5' COVER
FROM INTERIOR CONNECTION POINT.
PROVIDE MIN. 4" POLYSTYRENE
INSULATION FOR ALL WATERMAIN W/
LESS THAN 7.5' COVER. SEE DETAILS.
REFER TO STRUCTURAL PLANS FOR
CONNECTION THROUGH FOUNDATION.

PROPOSED 2" NONMETALLIC CONDUIT (EMPTY)

6" SCHED 40 PVC SANITARY SEWER SERVICE.
UTILIZE 4" POLYSTYRENE INSULATION FOR ALL

SANITARY SEWER  WITH LESS THAN 6.0' OF COVER.

45° BEND

11.25° BEND

PROPOSED ELECTRICAL CONDUITS
(1) 3.5" SCHED 80 PVC
(1) 1" SCHED 80 PVC
(2) 3" SCHED 80 PVC

D
ra

w
in

g 
20

22
 C

op
yr

ig
ht

  M
ey

er
, S

ch
er

er
 &

 R
oc

kc
as

tle
, L

td
.

ISSUE / REVISION
DateMark Description

510 Marquette Avenue South, Suite 200
Minneapolis, MN 55402  |  612.375.0336

7/
14

/2
02

3 
11

:1
1:

41
 A

M
C

:\P
ro

je
ct

s\
20

21
00

7S
AN

_R
22

_C
en

tra
l_

to
m

@
m

sr
de

si
gn

.c
om

.rv
t

BID PACK #2 - DEMO/FOOTINGS/FOUDNATION
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

CONFLUENCE

530 N THIRD STREET, SUITE 120
MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55401   |  612.237.5046

MATTSON MACDONALD
YOUNG

105 SOUTH 5TH AVENUE, SUITE 100
MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55401   |  612.827.7825

STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING MEP ENGINEERING

VICTUS ENGINEERING

2327 WYCLIFF STREET, SUITE 230
SAINT PAUL, MN 55114   |  651.323.3454

ARCHITECTURE & INTERIORS Project No: 2021007SAN

SANDVENTURE
1101 ADAMS ST. S
SHAKOPEE, MN 55379

CIVIL ENGINEERING

SEH INC.

10650 RED CIRCLE DR. SUITE 500
MINNETONKA, MN 55343   |  952.912.2637

BID PACK #207.28.2023

C006
PROPOSED UTILITIES

Engineer Seal

I hereby certify that this plan, specification or report
was prepared by me or under my direct supervision
and that I am a duly Licensed Professional Engineer
under the Laws of the State of Minnesota.

Signature

Print Name Blake Hansen, PE

Date JULY 28, 2023 License No 58904

0

feetscale

40 8040

20

NOTES:

1. WATERMAIN SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH 7.5' MINIMUM COVER FOR FROST PROTECTION.
2. ALL PRIVATE UTILITIES SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH 24" (2.0') MINIMUM COVER UNLESS

OTHERWISE SHOWN.
3. PROPOSED PRIVATE UTILITIES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE BASED ON FIELD

CONDITIONS AND FINAL DESIGN DETERMINATION. FOR THE PURPOSE OF BID PACKAGE
#2, CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL CONDUIT TO A MINIMUM OF 10' OUTSIDE OF
FOUNDATION, OR AS NECESSARY FOR FUTURE CONNECTION AND INSTALLATION OF
PROPOSED PRIVATE UTILITIES.

https://us02.procore.com/562949954435257/project/drawing_areas/562949954086117/drawing_log/562950018014438
https://us02.procore.com/562949954435257/project/drawing_areas/562949954086117/drawing_log/562950018014438
https://us02.procore.com/562949954435257/project/drawing_areas/562949954086117/drawing_log/562950018014438
https://us02.procore.com/562949954435257/project/drawing_areas/562949954086117/drawing_log/562950018014429
mheckman
Polygonal Line

mheckman
Oval

mheckman
Line

mheckman
Polygonal Line

mheckman
Polygon

mheckman
Polygonal Line

mheckman
Polygonal Line

mheckman
Polygonal Line

mheckman
Polygon

mheckman
Polygon

mheckman
Callout
8" DIP Watermain - Public  Loop per SPU specifications

mheckman
Line

mheckman
Callout
8x8 MJ Tee

mheckman
Callout
8" GV

mheckman
Callout
8" DIP Watermain - Private

mheckman
Callout
Install Two (2) 45 Degree 8" Bends; Combined 8" Water Service into building

mheckman
Callout
4" PVC Service out of the building into Irrigation Box. One (1) 2" Copper (Type K) and One (1) 1.5" PVC Water Service

mheckman
Callout
4" PVC C900 DR18 Watermain - Private (3' deep)

mheckman
Line

mheckman
Line

mheckman
Line

mheckman
Oval

mheckman
Line

mheckman
Callout
8"x6" MJ Tee; 5 LF 6" DIP Watermain, Hydrant and Valve

mheckman
Oval

mheckman
Line

mheckman
Callout
Water Meter

mheckman
Oval

mheckman
Rectangle

mheckman
Rectangle

mheckman
Rectangle

mheckman
Rectangle

mheckman
Polygonal Line

mheckman
Polygonal Line

mheckman
Polygon

mheckman
Polygonal Line

mheckman
Polygon

mheckman
Text Box
Building Inset

mheckman
Callout
4" PVC Service Line to Building

mheckman
Callout
Surge Tank

mheckman
Callout
4" Fill Line to Surge Tank

mheckman
Callout
2" Service Line to Building

mheckman
Callout
Connect 2" Service Line to existing service line in building

mheckman
Line

mheckman
Callout
Pool Building

mheckman
Callout
See Page 2

mheckman
Callout
8"x6" Reducer, Hydrant and Valve

mheckman
Stamp

mheckman
Rectangle







Reconstruction Fund Balance Projections

Date Per 1000 Gallon Charge Revenue Expense Ending Balance

12/31/2023 1,634,269.39$        

2024 0.42$                                    741,585$                                             305,000.00$                                                    2,070,854.57$        

2025 0.42$                                    749,001$                                             170,000.00$                                                    2,649,855.60$        

2026 0.42$                                    756,491$                                             85,000.00$                                                      3,321,346.64$        

2027 0.42$                                    764,056$                                             2,070,000.00$                                                2,015,402.60$        

2028 0.42$                                    771,697$                                             175,000.00$                                                    2,612,099.11$        

Revenue projections are based on 

1% growth per year * Water Main Reconstruction in 2027  

 












	Investment pres.pdf
	Market Update and Portfolio Review
	Slide Number 2
	Market Update
	January CPI Higher Than Expected
	Retail Sales Fall After �Strong Holiday Shopping Season
	Market Changes Course and �Prices in Fewer Rate Cuts by Year End 
	Market Projections and Fed’s Dot Plot �Begin to Converge
	FOMC Minutes
	Treasury Yields Slightly Higher in the 0 – 10 �Year Space
	Portfolio Review
	Interest Rate Risk
	SPU Portfolio Characteristics
	Upcoming Maturities
	Shakopee Public Utilities Portfolio Performance
	Accrual Basis Earnings – SPU Portfolio
	Historical Balances and Cash Flow �Seasonality Factors
	Shakopee Public Utilities: �Capital Improvement Plan Summary
	SPU Capital Improvement Plan Cash Flows: Electric Funds (assumes no financing)
	SPU Capital Improvement Plan Cash Flows: Water Funds (assumes no financing)
	Next Steps: Evolution of the Utilities’ Program and Strategy Considerations
	Slide Number 21

	7c.pdf
	Ex Utility Layout Exhibit.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	EX. UTILITY LAYOUT


	SPUC Flow Curve -Lion's Park & Sand Venture Pool.pdf
	Chart1



